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1 Attachment

Dear Sir/Madam,

S16 Planning Application for
Proposed Comprehensive Residential Development in "Undetermined" Zone
at Various Lots in D.D. 103 and D.D. 115, Tung Shing Lei, Nam Sang Wai, Yuen Long
(Planning Application No. A/YL-NSW/293)

Submission of Consolidated Set – Replacement Page

Further to our submission ref.: 268656/00/WSTY/MYNL/CYCL/04951 dated 30 Jan 2023, we
would like to submit a replacement page for the Final Supporting Planning Statement of the
Consolidated Set as attached for your consideration.

We sincerely seek for the favourable consideration from the Town Planning Board to approve this
S16 Planning Application. Should you have any queries, please contact the undersigned. Thank you
very much.

Yours faithfully,

Charlotte Lam
Town Planner | Planning 

Arup
Level 5, Festival Walk, 80 Tat Chee Avenue, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
d  +852 2908 4785                  f   +852 2268 3956     
t:  +852 2528 3031                 
arup.com

Follow us on    LinkedIn Twitter Instagram YouTube Facebook Weibo WeChat

From: Charlotte Lam
Sent: Monday, January 30, 2023 11:43 AM
To: tpbpd@pland.gov.hk
Cc: ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk; gtllam@pland.gov.hk; whyman@pland.gov.hk; Theresa Yeung
<theresa.yeung@arup.com>; Natalie Leung <natalie.leung@arup.com>
Subject: Planning Application No. A/YL-NSW/293 - Submission of Consolidated Set

Dear Sir/Madam,

S16 Planning Application for
Proposed Comprehensive Residential Development in "Undetermined" Zone
at Various Lots in D.D. 103 and D.D. 115, Tung Shing Lei, Nam Sang Wai, Yuen Long

RE: Planning Application No. A/YL-NSW/293 - Submission of Consolidated
Set31/01/2023 14:51
From: Charlotte Lam <charlotte.lam@arup.com>
To: "tpbpd@pland.gov.hk" <tpbpd@pland.gov.hk>
Cc: "ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk" <ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk>, "gtllam@pland.gov.hk"
<gtllam@pland.gov.hk>, "whyman@pland.gov.hk" <whyman@pland.gov.hk>, Theresa
Yeung <theresa.yeung@arup.com>, Natalie Leung <natalie.leung@arup.com>
Sent by: prvs=388285202=charlotte.lam@arup.com

04951 Consolidated Set Submission_Final_Replacement Page.pdf
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(Planning Application No. A/YL-NSW/293)

Submission of Consolidated Set

We would like to submit the Consolidated Set, which comprises the Final Supporting Planning
Statement with Final Technical Assessments and the Consolidated Response-to-Comment Tables, in
2 volumes for your consideration. Due to the large file size, we have uploaded the full submission to
the link here:

 04951 Consolidated Set Submission_Final.pdf
The 35 hard copies will be delivered to your office shortly.

Please also be informed that the typo on LMP-001 and LMP-004 of the Landscape Proposal
(Appendix F of the Final Supporting Planning Statement in Volume 2 of the Consolidated Set) has
been rectified.

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
 ____________________________________________________________
Electronic mail messages entering and leaving Arup business systems are scanned for viruses and
acceptability of content.
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Proposed Comprehensive Residential Development in “Undetermined” Zone at 

Various Lots in D.D. 103 and D.D. 115, Tung Shing Lei, Nam Sang Wai, Yuen Long 

     Final | July 2022  Page 30 

visually compatible with the planned/ potential medium density 

residential development to the north of the Proposed Scheme. 

4.4.6 Promoting vehicle-free pedestrian-friendly walking environment: 

In the Proposed Scheme, car parking and internal roads will be provided 

at basement level as far as practicable in forming an underground 

internal road network connecting to different building clusters. A 

vehicle-free and pedestrian-friendly walking environment will hence be 

promoted which also avoids bulky car park structures above ground. 

Proposed Development Parameters 

4.5.1 The key development parameters of the Proposed Scheme at the 

Application Site is summarised in Table 4.1 below. Please refer to 

Appendix B for the Architectural Drawings of the Proposed Scheme.  

Table 4.1 Key Development Parameters of the Proposed Scheme 

Key Development 
Parameters 

Proposed Scheme 

Site Area About 53,584m2 

Proposed Use Flat, House, Shop and Services and Eating 
Place 

Total GFA 

- Domestic GFA

- Non-Domestic GFA#

About 162,238m2 

- About 156,880m2

- About 5,358m2 

Plot Ratio 

- Domestic

- Non-Domestic#

About 3.028 

- About 2.928

- About 0.10

No. of Blocks 14 residential towers and 9 villa houses 

Building Height 
(No. of Storeys) 

Not Exceeding 139mPD 

(2–44 storeys excluding basement floors) 

Site Coverage About 18% 

No. of Units 3,556 flats and 9 houses 

Average Unit Size About 44.1m2 

Anticipated Population About 10,330 

Local Open Space Not less than 10,330m2 

Recreation Clubhouse* One 2-storey block with GFA of about 
2,920m2 and one 1-storey block with GFA of 
about 1,000m2 

Anticipated Completion 
Year 

2026 

No. of Parking Spaces and Loading/Unloading Spaces 

Residential 710 nos.  (including 9 nos. accessible parking 
spaces) 

Visitor 70 nos. 



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

Submission of Consolidated Set – Supplementary Information

Further to our submission ref.: 268656/00/WSTY/MYNL/CYCL/04951 dated 30 Jan 2023 and the
earlier email, we would like to further supplement the Attachment F of Further Information 9
(submitted on 29 Jul 2022) for the Consolidated Set as attached for your consideration.

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
Sent: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 2:51 PM
To: tpbpd@pland.gov.hk
Cc: ccmcheung@pland.gov.hk; gtllam@pland.gov.hk; whyman@pland.gov.hk; Theresa Yeung
<theresa.yeung@arup.com>; Natalie Leung <natalie.leung@arup.com>
Subject: RE: Planning Application No. A/YL-NSW/293 - Submission of Consolidated Set

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
Set31/01/2023 16:13
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

FI9_Attachment F_Social Welfare.pdf
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FI9 Attachment F 
NOFA and GFA of the 
Concerned Social 
Welfare Facilities



Net Operating Floor Area (NOFA) and Gross Floor Area (GFA)  
of the Social Welfare Facilities to be Provided at the Application Site 

 
 
Social Welfare Facilities* NOFA (m2) 

(Proposed by Social Welfare 
Department via comments 
received on 23 Nov 2021) 

or GFA (m2)# 

One Neighbourhood Elderly Centre 
(NEC) 

303  About 667 

One team of Home Care Services 
(HCS) for Frail Elderly Persons  
(2-team size non-kitchen based) 

142  About 312 

Remarks: 
* Excluded from GFA and plot ratio (PR) calculation. 
# The GFAs stated are based on a conversion factor from NOFA to GFA of 2.2. 



Appendix II of RNTPC
Paper No. A/YL-NSW/293A

Similar s.16 Applications for Residential Development
within “Undetermined” Zone on the Nam Sang Wai OZP

Approved Applications

No. Application No. Proposed Use(s)/
Development(s)

Date of
Consideration

Decision of the
RNTPC/TPB

1. A/YL-NSW/15 Residential Development with
Preservation of Pun Uk

18.10.1996 Approved by RNTPC

2. A/YL-NSW/172 Proposed Comprehensive
Residential Development

14.12.2007 Approved by RNTPC

A/YL-NSW/172-1 (Extension of time limit for
commencement for the
proposed development)

Approved by D of Plan
under the delegated
authority of the TPB

(valid until 14.12.2015)

3. A/YL-NSW/224 Proposed Residential
Development, Filling and
Excavation of Land

23.5.2014 Approved by RNTPC

4 A/YL-NSW/233 Proposed Residential
Development with Filling and
Excavation of Land

22.1.2016 Approved by RNTPC

A/YL-NSW/233-1 (Extension of time limit for
commencement for the
proposed development)

Approved by D of Plan
under the delegated
authority of the TPB

(valid until 22.1.2024)

5. A/YL-NSW/274 Proposed Residential (Flat) and
Community Hub (Shop and
Services, Eating Place, School,
Place of Recreation, Sports or
Culture and Public Transport
Terminus) Development

26.2.2021 Approved by RNTPC
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Rejected Applications

No. Application No. Proposed Use(s)/
Development(s)

Date of
Consideration

Decision of
the

RNTPC/TPB

Main
Reason(s) for

Rejection

1. A/YL-NSW/5 Residential Development 17.2.1995 Rejected
by RNTPC

R1 to R5

2. A/YL-NSW/7 Residential Development 21.7.1995 Rejected
by RNTPC

R1 to R5

3. A/YL-NSW/10 Residential Development 28.6.1996 Rejected
by RNTPC

R6

4. A/YL-NSW/73 Proposed Residential
Development

17.3.2000 Rejected
by RNTPC

R7 to R12

5. A/YL-NSW/105 Proposed Residential
Development

5.10.2001 Rejected
by RNTPC

R7, R9, R12 &
R13

Rejection Reasons
R1 The proposed development will constrain the future land use planning of the area the finalization of

which will depend on the selected railway alignment yet to be confirmed.

R2 As the proposed development is not located within the Yuen Long New Town area, the proposed
development intensity is considered excessive in terms of its plot ratio and building height.

R3 As the development will generate additional traffic, the proposed arrangement of using the access on
Castle Peak Road is not desirable because this will increase the traffic burden on the junction of Castle
Peak Road and the access road.

R4 The traffic movement in/out of the proposed development may hamper the access of emergency
vehicles to the Pok Oi Hospital and will pose unacceptable risks to other motorists in the immediate
area.

R5 The proposed development will affect the existing Grade I historical building which is of outstanding
historical and architectural merits.

R6 The car-parking space provision for the proposed development is insufficient and the car-parking
space provision should be about one space per flat.

R7 The proposed development is incompatible with the rural setting of the immediate surrounding area,
the fish ponds and fish farming activities to its north and east and the low-density low-rise residential
development in the "Residential (Group D)" zone to its north and west.

R8 The proposed development does not comply with the revised Town Planning Board Guidelines for
"Application for Developments within Deep Bay Area" in that there is no ecological impact
assessment in the submission to demonstrate that the development would not result in, or be fully able
to compensate for, any loss in the total ecological functions of the original fish ponds within the site.
There is also no information in the submission to demonstrate that the proposed development would
not have adverse disturbance impact on the ecological integrity and ecological value of the fish ponds
within the Wetland Conservation Area or that such impacts can be mitigated through positive
measures.

R9 The majority of the site falls within the works limit of the proposed alignment for the Yuen Long
Bypass Floodway (YLBF) and the remaining area is planned to be used as Temporary Occupation
Area. The alternative alignment suggested by the applicant is not acceptable as it would have adverse
environmental and ecological impacts. In particular, it would affect the fish ponds further north that
are still in good condition and would cause fragmentation of the wetland habitat. Approval of the
application would frustrate the implementation of the YLBF which is an essential infrastructure
project needed to alleviate the flooding risk to the Yuen Long area.

R10 There is insufficient information in the submission to demonstrate that proper vehicular access can be
provided to serve the proposed development.
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R11 There is insufficient information in the submission to demonstrate that the concerns on traffic noise
impact, water quality impact on Deep Bay and feasibility of connecting the proposed development to
future trunk sewer can be satisfactorily addressed.

R12 The approval of the application would set an undesirable precedent for other similar applications. The
cumulative effect of approving such similar applications would result in adverse impact on the traffic,
drainage, sewerage and environment of the area.

R13 The application site is zoned "Undetermined" on the Nam Sang Wai Outline Zoning Plan. Further
study is being undertaken to review the land-use for the area taking into account the provision of
infrastructure and Government, institution and community facilities. Since approval of this application
would impose constraints on the land-use review for the whole area, it is pre-mature to consider the
application at this stage.
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Appendix IV of RNTPC
Paper No. A/YL-NSW/293A

Recommended Advisory Clauses

(a) To note the comments of the District Lands Officer/Yuen Long, LandsD (DLO/YL,
LandsD) as follows:

(i) the application site (the Site) involves various private lots in D.D. 103 and D.D. 115
either covered by Block Government Lease or New Grant, the details of which would
be checked during land application stage;

(ii) as quoted by the applicant, the Site has an area of about 53,584 m2, which should be
subject to further verification and survey.  In case of any discrepancy in site area
found, the proposed development parameters will have to be revised accordingly;

(iii) it is noted that there are some graves within the Site upon his land status checking.
Any private development proposal which affects the graves should be carefully
considered.  In particular, proposal to remove the existing graves will normally not be
supported;

(iv) the Site is subject to the Shek Kong Airfield Height Restriction of 129 to 149mPD.
The proposed maximum BH of 139mPD may exceed the above height restriction
depending on the disposition of residential towers and the height of the rooftop
structures;

(v) according to the applicant, an ultimate pedestrian network is proposed to provide
pedestrian connection to the major public transport, MTR stations and shopping malls
in the area, which includes a proposed green corridor running along the MTR Tuen Ma
Line (TML) to serve as open space/pedestrian linkage for public use.  According to
the indicative layout plan, the proposed green corridor is outside the Site and involves
other private land and Government land (GL).  It also involves burial grounds, public
road, and village building/structures under AMO references.  His office would not
invoke the relevant Ordinance for resumption of any private lots or creation of any
rights for the implementation of the proposed development.  The applicant should be
requested to check with relevant government departments on the gazetting implication
and requirement of the proposed green corridor and clarify the parties responsible for
its design, construction, management and maintenance;

(vi) the tree felling/transplanting/tree compensatory proposal as shown in the Landscape
Master Plan and at the Landscape Proposal should be submitted separately for formal
approval upon implementation of the development proposal; and

(vii) should the Board decide to approve the application, the registered owners have to
apply for a land exchange to implement the planning scheme.  However, there is no
guarantee at this stage that the land exchange application would be approved.  Such
application will be dealt with by LandsD acting in the capacity as the landlord at his
discretion, and if it is approved under such discretion, the approval would be subject to
such terms and conditions including amongst others, the payment of premium and
administrative fee as may be imposed by LandsD.

(b) To note the comments of the Commissioner for Transport (C for T) that the development
site of this planning application partly overlaps with a public housing development at Tung



- 2 -

A/YL-NSW/293

Shing Lei under the Study.  In particular, the proposed access roads and the associated
traffic and transport facilities in this planning application and the said public housing
development are incompatible with each other.

(c) To note the comments of the Chief Highway Engineer/New Territories West, Highways
Department (CHE/NTW, HyD) as follows:

(i) the proposed access arrangement of the Site from Castle Peak Road – Yuen Long/
Long Fai Road/ Yuen Long Highway should be approved by Transport Department
(TD);

(ii) HyD is not/shall not be responsible for the maintenance of any access connecting the
Site and Castle Peak Road – Yuen Long/ Long Fai Road/ Yuen Long Highway/ Long
Fai Road.  Presumably, the relevant department will provide their comments, if any

(iii) if any road improvements are considered necessary by TD due to the proposed
development, they shall be implemented by the applicant to the satisfaction of TD and
HyD at the applicant’s own cost;

(iv) the proposed green corridor will not be implemented and maintained by HyD;

(v) It is noted that the proposed road works at Castle Peak Road – Yuen Long and Yuen
Long Highway would affect HyD’s slope feature no. 6NE-A/C30 and 6NE-A/F64
respectively.  The applicant should submit modification proposal of the slopes and
associated slope boundary to his office and the Geotechnical Engineering Office Slope
Safety Division for consensus and updating; and

(vi) adequate drainage measures should be provided to prevent surface water running from
the Site to the nearby public roads and drains.

(d) To note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Railway Development 2-2, Railway
Development Office, HyD (CE/RD 2-2, RDO, HyD) that location of the proposed
development falls within the Railway Protection Zone of existing TML. The railway
protection team of MTR Corporation Limited should be consulted with respect to operation,
maintenance and safety of the existing rail network.

(e) To note the comments of the Director of Agriculture, Fisheries and Conservation (DAFC)
that based on the Ecological Impact Assessment, it is understood that the development will
result in the loss of one semi-active pond, whilst the other pond will be preserved and
transformed into an Eco-lake.  According to the records, both fish ponds are engaged in
pond fish culture, and so it is advised that in addition to requiring “mitigation for loss of this
habitat”, mitigation measures for any direct, indirect, on-site/off-site impacts to fisheries
during the construction and operation phases be identified and evaluated.  The applicant is
advised to conduct a Fisheries Impact Assessment in support of his application.

(f) To note the comments of the Director of Environmental Protection (DEP) that an
environmental permit under the Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance is required
prior to the commencement of construction and operation of the project, for a reason that
the project would constitute a designated project (DP) under Item P.2, Part 1, Schedule 2 of
the EIAO (since the application site is unsewered and the nos. of flat units provided under
the development would be more than 2,000 flats, i.e. “A residential development of (a) not
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less than 2000 flats; and (b) not served by public sewerage networks by the time a flat is
occupied”).

(g) To note the comments of the Chief Town Planner/Urban Design and Landscape, Planning
Department (CTP/UD&L, PlanD) that:

Urban Design and Visual

(i) given the spatial context of the Site and its immediate surrounding areas, together with
the planned development under the Application No. A/YL-NSW/274 to its northwest
as well as the potential public housing development at Tung Shing Lei in the same “U”
zone being subject to a technical feasibility study, the proposed residential
development with a maximum total PR of 3.028 and a maximum BH of 139mPD at the
Site would bring further visual changes to the existing neighbourhood, thus forming a
new residential cluster of medium/high-rise developments;

(ii) judging from the photomontages of the submitted VIA, the proposed development with
BH up to 139mPD would stand out and lead to loss of visual openness and
skyview/natural backdrop when viewed at VPs 2 to 4 and 8 to 10, resulting in slightly
to moderately adverse visual impacts as rated by the applicant.  It is noted that several
design and mitigation measures have been proposed by the applicant, including
stepped BH design, building gaps, variation in built form and façade treatment to
minimise the bulkiness and potential visual impacts of the proposed development;

Air Ventilation

(iii) an AVA Initial Study (IS) using computational fluid dynamic modelling has been
carried out for the Baseline Scheme (i.e. existing condition) and the Proposed Scheme
for the “Undetermined” zone of the Application Site. As set out in the AVA IS
report, the Proposed Scheme has incorporated the wind enhancement measures
including (i) 10m setback to the west of T2; (ii) 23m-wide building separation between
T5 and V4; (iii) 10m-wide building separation between T4 and T7; (iv) 21m-wide
building separation between T7 and T8; (v) 6m setback to the south of T9; (vi)
11m-wide building separation between T14 and T15; (vii) 10m-wide building
separation between T12 and T13; (viii) 7.3m-wide EVA within the subject site and (ix)
about 18,570m2 open area within the Northern Site with majority of the landscape and
lake areas located in the eastern part;

(iv) according to the simulation results, the proposed building layout plan of the Proposed
Scheme would bring localised improvement on the pedestrian wind environment for
certain areas (such as Long Shing Road under annual condition, etc.) and probably
have potential impacts for other areas (such as Yeung Uk Tsuen under annual
condition and the track connecting to Ho Chau Road under summer condition, etc.).
Overall, with the mitigation measures, the performances of the Proposed Scheme on
pedestrian wind environment are in general comparable with the Baseline Scheme
under both annual and summer conditions;

Landscape

(v) according to the aerial photo of 2021, about half portion of the site area is currently
occupied by existing ponds.  The Site is situated in an area of rural fringe landscape
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character comprised of ponds, vegetated fields, clustered tree groups, green-belt,
village houses, temporary structures and carparks etc.  Existing and planned low to
medium-rise residential developments and GIC facilities are located in the vicinity of
the Site.  The proposed development is considered not entirely incompatible with
existing and planned landscape setting in the proximity, although it would bring forth
noticeable changes to the landscape character of the surrounding area;

(vi) with reference to the Landscape Proposal, landscape treatments and considerable area
of “Eco-lake and Preserved Zone” located in the eastern part of the Northern Site are
proposed within the Site.  According to the Supplementary Planning Statement, not
less than 30% of site coverage of greenery would be provided in the development of
which not less than 15% of the greenery is provided at pedestrian zone.  Besides,
more than 65% of proposed trees and shrubs are native species to enhance biodiversity
for the development areas;

(vii) it is observed that the proposed Linear Park, which served as green corridor, is outside
the planning application boundary.  There is no information on the party responsible
for construction, management and maintenance of the proposed Linear Park, and hence
the feasibly of implementation of the Linear Park is in doubt.  The applicant is
reminded to seek comments from the relevant authorities accordingly; and

(viii)the applicant should be advised that approval of the application does not imply
approval of tree works such as pruning, transplanting and felling under lease.  The
applicant shall seek approval for any proposed tree works from relevant departments
prior to commencement of the works.

(h) To note the comments of the Chief Building Surveyor/New Territories West, Buildings
Department as follows:

(i) there is no record of approval granted by the Building Authority (BA) for the existing
structures at the Site;

(ii) noting that the Site is divided into 2 portions, the development intensity of each portion
shall be considered individually;

(iii) if the existing structure (not being a New Territories Exempted House) are erected on
leased land without the approval of the BA, they are unauthorized building works
(UBW) under the Buildings Ordinance (BO) and should not be designated for any
proposed use under the captioned application;

(iv) for UBW erected on leased land, enforcement action may be taken by the Buildings
Department to effect their removal in accordance with the prevailing enforcement
policy against UBW as and when necessary.  The granting of any planning approval
should not be construed as an acceptance of any existing building works or UBW on
the Site under the BO;

(v) before any new building works (including containers/open sheds as temporary
buildings, demolition and land fullings etc.) are to be carried out on the Site, prior
approval and consent of the BA should be obtained, otherwise they are UBW. An
Authorized Person should be appointed as the co-ordinator for the proposed building
works in accordance with the BO;
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(vi) the Site does not abut on any existing specified street and the development intensity of
the Site shall be determined by BA under Regulation 19(3) of the Building (Planning)
Regulation (B(P)R) at building plan submission stage;

(vii) the Site shall be provided with means of obtaining access thereto from a street and
EVA in accordance with Regulations 5 and 41D of the Building (Planning)
Regulations (B(P)R) respectively;

(viii)any parking spaces to be disregarded from GFA calculation under the Regulation
23(3)(b) of the B(P)R shall be subject to the requirements laid down in Appendix C of
PNAP APP-2;

(ix) for features applied to be excluded from the calculation of the total GFA, it shall be
subject to compliance with the requirements laid down in the relevant Joint Practice
Notes and PNAP.  For example, the requirements of building set back, building
separation and site coverage of greenery as stipulated in PNAP APP-152; and

(x) detailed comments under the BO will be provided during the plan submission stage.

(i) To note the comments of the Director of Fire Services (D of FS) as follows:

(i) detailed fire services requirements will be formulated upon receipt of formal
submission of general building plans; and

(ii) the applicant is advised to observe the requirements of EVA as stipulated in Section 6,
Part D of the Code of Practice for Fire Safety in Building 2011, which is administered
by the Buildings Department.  If the aforementioned requirements cannot be
complied with, enhanced fire safety provisions shall be required.

(j) To note the comments of the Antiques and Monuments Office (AMO) and Commissioner of
Heritage’s Office (CHO) of the Development Bureau as follows:

(i) although there is no graded / proposed graded historic building nor item on the “List of
New Items for Grading Assessment” on the Site and no site of archaeological interest
will be affected physically, the Site is only about 23m away from 5 Grade 3 historic
buildings at Nos. 63, 65, 66 and 67 Tung Shing Lei and Hat Shut Tong at No. 68 Tung
Shing Lei.  The 5 graded historic buildings were according a Grade 3 status
individually by the Antiquities Advisory Board (AAB) on 12.9.2019; and

(ii) the applicant shall conduct necessary assessment to ascertain if there are any direct and
indirect impacts arising from the proposed development to the aforesaid 5 Grade 3
buildings.  Appropriate mitigation/protective measures to safeguard the 5 Grade 3
historic buildings from the development should be devised accordingly.  AMO would
provide comments from heritage conservation perspective on the related submission at
detailed design stage when available.

(k) To note the comments of the Head of Geotechnical Engineering Office, CEDD (H(GEO),
CEDD) as follows:
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(i) it is noted that the applicant has committed, in the GPRR, to undertake a natural terrain
hazard study (NTHS) and to implement mitigation measures, if necessary, as part of
the proposed development; and

(ii) it is noted that the applicant has included preliminary geotechnical assessment and
proposals in the GPRR.  The applicant shall submit the proposed building works
plans to the BD for approval as required under the provisions of BO.  His office
would provide comments on the geotechnical aspects of the proposed development via
the BD.

(l) To note the comments of the Chief Engineer/Construction, Water Supplies Department
(CE/C, WSD) that:

(i) existing water mains will be affected. The cost of any necessary diversion shall be
borne by the proposed development;

(ii) in case it is not feasible to divert the affected water mains, a waterworks reserve within
1.5m from the centre line of the water mains shall be provided to WSD.  No structure
shall be built or materials stored within this waterworks reserve. Free access shall be
made available at all times for staff of the Director of Water Supplies and their
contractor to carry out construction, inspection, operation, maintenance and repair
works;

(iii) no trees or shrubs with penetrating roots may be planted within the waterworks reserve
or in the vicinity of the water main; and

(iv) the Government shall not be liable to any damage whatsoever and howsoever caused
arising from burst or leakage of the public watermains within and in close vicinity of
the Site.

(m) To note the comments of the Director of Electrical and Mechanical Services (DEMS) that:

(i) in the interests of public safety and ensuring the continuity of electricity supply, the
parties concerned with planning, designing, organizing, supervising and conducting
any activity near the underground cable or overhead line under the mentioned
application should approach the electricity supplier (i.e. CLP Power) for the requisition
of cable plans (and overhead line alignment drawings, where applicable) to find out
whether there is any underground cable and/or overhead line within and/or in the
vicinity of the concerned site.  They should also be reminded to observe the
Electricity Supply Lines (Protection) Regulation and the “Code of Practice on Working
near Electricity Supply Lines” established under the Regulation when carrying out
works in the vicinity of the electricity supply lines; and

(ii) there are high pressure town gas pipelines (HP pipelines) running along Castle Peak
Road (Tam Mi and Yuen Long sections) and there is a town gas offtake and pigging
station adjacent to the Yuen Long Highway in vicinity of the application site.  The
applicant shall liaise with the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited in respect
of the exact locations of the facilities.

(n) To note the comments of the Director of Food and Environmental Hygiene (DFEH):
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(i) no Food and Environmental Hygiene Department’s (FEHD) facilities should be
affected by the proposed development;

(ii) if FEHD is requested to take up management responsibility of new public toilets and
refuse collection points, FEHD should be separately consulted.  Prior consent from
FEHD must be obtained and sufficient amount of recurrent cost must be provided to
his department;

(iii) if provision of cleansing service for new roads, streets, cycle tracks, footpaths, paved
areas etc, is required, FEHD should be separately consulted.  Prior consent from
FEHD must be obtained and sufficient amount of recurrent cost must be provided to
his department;

(iv) no environmental nuisance should be generated to the surroundings. Also, for any
waste generated from the operations and works, the project proponent should arrange
its disposal properly at their own expenses;

(v) if the captioned project will lead to significant population increase, sufficient amount
of recurrent costs must be provided to FEHD in order to provide various types of
environmental hygiene services for increased population, such as inspection to food
premises, hawker control, handling of complaints, etc; and

(vi) if domestic waste collection service of FEHD is required in future, prior comments
from FEHD on the waste collection plan, including the accessibility and
maneuverability of RCV to RCP, should be sought.
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